
City Council Meeting Agenda 
December 8, 2020 

Page 1 of 2 

City of Belton, Texas 
City Council Meeting Agenda 

Tuesday, December 8, 2020 - 5:30 p.m. 
Wright Room at the Harris Community Center 

401 N. Alexander, Belton, Texas 

PLEASE NOTE: FACE COVERINGS WILL BE REQUIRED 
WHERE SOCIAL DISTANCING CANNOT BE 

MAINTAINED. 

Pledge of Allegiance. The Pledge of Allegiance to the U.S. Flag will be led by 
Councilmember Craig Pearson. 

Texas Pledge. The Pledge of Allegiance to the Texas Flag will be led by Assistant City 
Manager/Chief of Police Gene Ellis. 

“Honor the Texas flag; I pledge allegiance to thee Texas, one state under 
God, one and indivisible.” 

Invocation. The Invocation will be given by Councilmember David K. Leigh. 

1. Call to order.

2. Public Comments.

Citizens who desire to address the Council on any matter may register to do
so prior to this meeting and speak during this item. Forms are located on the
table outside of the south side entry to the meeting room. Please state your
name and address for the record, and limit your comments to three minutes.
Also, please understand that while the Council appreciates hearing your
comments, State law (Texas Gov’t Code §551.042) prohibits them from: (1)
engaging in discussion other than providing a statement of specific factual
information or reciting existing City policy, and (2) taking action other than
directing Staff to place the matter on a future agenda.

Consent Agenda 

Items 3-4 under this section are considered to be routine by the City Council and may 
be enacted by one motion. If discussion is desired by the Council, any item may be 
removed from the Consent Agenda prior to voting, at the request of any 
Councilmember, and it will be considered separately. 



City Council Meeting Agenda 
December 8, 2020 

Page 2 of 2 
 
 

3. Consider minutes of previous meetings: 
 
A. November 24, 2020, City Council Workshop Meeting; and 
B. November 24, 2020, City Council Meeting. 
 

4. Consider appointments/reappointments to the following Boards/Commissions: 
 

A. Ethics Commission 
B. Hill Country Transit District Board; 
C. Library Board;  
D. Parks Board;  
E. Building and Standards Commission; 
F. Tax Increment Reinvestment Zone; and 
G. Central Texas Housing Consortium Board. 

 
Miscellaneous 
 
5. Conduct a drawing of lots to determine place numbers for future City Council 

elections. 
 

6. Consider authorizing a license agreement with Randy Taylor Custom Builders to 
allow an entry sign for West Canyon Trails Subdivision in the public right-of-way 
located at the intersection of West Avenue O and Alan Trails. 
 

7. Consider authorizing an administrative services agreement with the Belton 
Economic Development Corporation. 

 
8. Consider authorizing the Executive Director of the Belton Economic Development 

Corporation to enter into an infrastructure development agreement with Premier 
Belton Two LLC for the construction of a waterline at 3463 IH-14. 

 
9. Consider amending Chapter 23, Article VII, Section 23-302 of the Code of 

Ordinances allowing for the exemption of properties owned and operated by the U.S. 
Army Corps of Engineers for the purpose of flood risk management from the 
drainage fee. 
 

The City Council reserves the right to adjourn into Executive Session at any time regarding any issue on 
this agenda for which it is legally permissible. 



City Council Meeting Agenda 
December 8, 2020 

Page 1 of 3 
 
 

 
City of Belton, Texas 

 
City Council Meeting Agenda 

Tuesday, December 8, 2020 - 5:30 p.m. 
Wright Room at the Harris Community Center 

401 N. Alexander, Belton, Texas 
 

 
OFFICE OF THE CITY MANAGER 
 

PLEASE NOTE: FACE COVERINGS WILL BE REQUIRED WHERE SOCIAL 
DISTANCING CANNOT BE MAINTAINED. 

 
Pledge of Allegiance. The Pledge of Allegiance to the U.S. Flag will be led by 
Councilmember Craig Pearson. 
 
Texas Pledge. The Pledge of Allegiance to the Texas Flag will be led by Assistant City 
Manager/Chief of Police Gene Ellis. 
 

“Honor the Texas flag; I pledge allegiance to thee Texas, one state under 
God, one and indivisible.” 

 
Invocation. The Invocation will be given by Councilmember David K. Leigh. 
 
1. Call to order. 

 
2. Public Comments. 

 
Citizens who desire to address the Council on any matter may register to do 
so prior to this meeting and speak during this item. Forms are located on the 
table outside of the south side entry to the meeting room. Please state your 
name and address for the record, and limit your comments to three minutes. 
Also, please understand that while the Council appreciates hearing your 
comments, State law (Texas Gov’t Code §551.042) prohibits them from: (1) 
engaging in discussion other than providing a statement of specific factual 
information or reciting existing City policy, and (2) taking action other than 
directing Staff to place the matter on a future agenda. 
 

Consent Agenda 
 
Items 3-4 under this section are considered to be routine by the City Council and may 
be enacted by one motion. If discussion is desired by the Council, any item may be 



City Council Meeting Agenda 
December 8, 2020 

Page 2 of 3 
 
 

removed from the Consent Agenda prior to voting, at the request of any 
Councilmember, and it will be considered separately. 
 
3. Consider minutes of previous meetings: 

 
A. November 24, 2020, City Council Workshop Meeting; and 
B. November 24, 2020, City Council Meeting. 
 
Copies of the minutes are attached. Recommend approval. 
 

4. Consider appointments to the following Boards/Commissions: 
 

A. Ethics Commission (Tyson McLaughlin representing Daniel Bucher); 
B. Hill Country Transit District Board (Dan Kirkley); 
C. Library Board (Roxanne Sanders);  
D. Parks Board (Oscar Bersoza);  
E. Building and Standards Commission (Cari Starritt-Burnett – regular; hope 

to have names of alternates by the meeting); 
F. Tax Increment Reinvestment Zone Board (David K. Leigh, Craig Pearson 

and Blair Williams); and 
G. Central Texas Housing Consortium Board (Linda Angel). 

 
See Staff Report from City Clerk Amy Casey. Recommend approval of the 
appointments and reappointments as presented. 

 
Miscellaneous 
 
5. Conduct a drawing of lots to determine place numbers for future City Council 

elections. 
 
See Staff Report from City Clerk Amy Casey. Recommend drawing lots for place 
numbers. 
 

6. Consider authorizing a license agreement with Randy Taylor Custom Builders 
to allow an entry sign for West Canyon Trails Subdivision in the public right-
of-way located at the intersection of West Avenue O and Alan Trails. 
 
See Staff Report from Planner Tina Moore. Recommend approval of the license 
agreement for the entry sign into West Canyon Trails Subdivision. 
 

7. Consider authorizing an administrative services agreement with the Belton 
Economic Development Corporation. 

 
See Staff Report from City Manager Sam Listi and BEDC Executive Director Cynthia 
Hernandez. Recommend approval of the agreement as presented. 



City Council Meeting Agenda 
December 8, 2020 

Page 3 of 3 
 
 

8. Consider authorizing the Executive Director of the Belton Economic 
Development Corporation to enter into an infrastructure development 
agreement with Premier Belton Two LLC for the construction of a waterline at 
3463 IH-14. 

 
See Staff Report from BEDC Executive Director Cynthia Hernandez. Recommend 
approval of the agreement as presented. 

 
9. Consider amending Chapter 23, Article VII, Section 23-302 of the Code of 

Ordinances allowing for the exemption of properties owned and operated by 
the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers for the purpose of flood risk management 
from the drainage fee. 
 
See Staff Report from City Manager Sam Listi. Recommend approval of the 
ordinance amending Chapter 23, Article VII, Section 23-302 related to exemptions. 
 

The City Council reserves the right to adjourn into Executive Session at any time regarding any issue on 
this agenda for which it is legally permissible. 



Belton City Council Workshop Meeting 
November 24, 2020 – 4:30 P.M. 

 
The Belton City Council met in a workshop session in the Wright Room of the Harris 
Community Center. Members present included Mayor Wayne Carpenter, Mayor Pro 
Tem Dan Kirkley (Zoom) and Councilmembers John R. Holmes, Sr., Craig Pearson and 
Daniel Bucher. Councilmember Guy O’Banion was absent. Staff present included Sam 
Listi, Gene Ellis Amy Casey, Jon Fontenot, Paul Romer, Chris Brown, Mike Rodgers, 
Charlotte Walker, Cynthia Hernandez and Judy Garrett.  
 
1. Call to order. Mayor Carpenter called the meeting to order at 4:30 p.m. 
 
2. Public Comments. (Audio 0:02) 
 

There were none. 
 
3. Receive an update on COVID-19 from Dr. Amanda Robison-Chadwell, Director 

of the Bell County Public Health District. (Audio 0:07) 
 

Director of the Bell County Public Health District, Dr. Amanda Robison-Chadwell, 
updated the Council on the latest information regarding COVID-19 as it relates to 
Bell County. 

 
There being no further business, the Mayor adjourned the meeting at 4:59 p.m. 
 
 
 

_____________________________  
Wayne Carpenter, Mayor 

ATTEST: 
 
 
_____________________________  
Amy M. Casey, City Clerk 



Belton City Council Meeting 
November 24, 2020 – 5:30 P.M. 

 
The Belton City Council met in regular session in the Wright Room of the Harris 
Community Center. Members present included Mayor Wayne Carpenter, Mayor Pro 
Tem Dan Kirkley (Zoom) and Councilmembers John R. Holmes, Sr., Craig Pearson and 
Daniel Bucher. Councilmember Guy O’Banion was absent. Staff present included Sam 
Listi, Gene Ellis John Messer, Amy Casey, Jon Fontenot, Paul Romer, Chris Brown, 
Mike Rodgers, Bob van Til, Charlotte Walker, Tina Moore, Cynthia Hernandez, Judy 
Garrett and Angellia Points.  
 
The Pledge of Allegiance to the U.S. Flag was led by Mayor Wayne Carpenter, and the 
Pledge of Allegiance to the Texas Flag was led by Interim Director of Planning Bob van 
Til. The Invocation was given by Councilmember Craig Pearson. 
 
 
1. Call to order. Mayor Carpenter called the meeting to order at 5:32 p.m. 
 
2. Public Comments. (Audio 1:25)  
 

There were none. 
 
Consent Agenda  (Audio 1:39) 
 
Items 3-5 under this section are considered to be routine by the City Council and may 
be enacted by one motion. If discussion is desired by the Council, any item may be 
removed from the Consent Agenda prior to voting, at the request of any 
Councilmember, and it will be considered separately. 
 
3. Consider minutes of previous meetings: 

 
A. November 10, 2020 City Council Meeting. 
B. November 16, 2020 Special Called City Council Meeting. 
 

4. Consider an ordinance adopting Budget Amendment #1 to the City of Belton 
FY 2020 Annual Budget. 

 
5. Consider adopting a resolution of support for a grant application to the U.S.  

Department of Interior National Park Service’s African American Civil Rights 
Preservation Grant application on behalf of Mount Zion United Methodist 
Church, located at 218 Alexander Street. 

 
Mayor Carpenter asked that Item #5 be pulled for a presentation. 
 
Upon a motion for approval by Councilmember Holmes, and a second by 
Councilmember Pearson, Consent Agenda Items 3-4, including the following captioned 
ordinance, were unanimously approved upon a vote of 6-0. 
 



Belton City Council Meeting 
November 24, 2020 – Page 2  
 

  

Interim Director of Planning Bob van Til presented a resolution for support of a grant 
application benefitting Mt. Zion Methodist Church. 
 
Upon a motion for approval by Councilmember Leigh, and a second by Councilmember 
Holmes, Consent Agenda Item 5, including the following captioned resolution, was 
unanimously approved upon a vote of 6-0. 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 2020-47 
 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF BELTON, TEXAS, ADOPTING AMENDMENT   
NO.  1 TO THE BUDGET OF THE CITY OF BELTON, TEXAS, FOR ITS FISCAL   
YEAR 2020; BY PROVIDING DETAILED LINE INCREASES; BY MAKING 
SUPPLEMENTAL APPROPRIATIONS; DECLARING THIS A MATTER OF PUBLIC 
NECESSITY; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; AND PROVIDING FOR THE 
EFFECTIVE DATE THEREOF. 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2020-31-R 
 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF BELTON, TEXAS, IN 
PARTNERSHIP WITH AND IN SUPPORT OF A GRANT APPLICATION TO THE 
NATIONAL PARK SERVICE’S AFRICAN AMERICAN CIVIL RIGHTS PRESERVA-
TION GRANT PROGRAM 2020 FOR MOUNT ZION UNITED METHODIST CHURCH. 
 
Regular Agenda 
 
6. Receive a presentation on recipients of Coronavirus Relief Funding small 

business grants Phase 2, and consider authorizing grants of $25,000 each to 
Helping Hands Ministry and Belton Senior Citizens Center. (Audio 9:49) 

 
Upon a motion for approval by Councilmember Pearson, and a second by 
Councilmember Holmes, Item #6 was unanimously approved upon a vote of 6-0. 
 

Planning and Zoning 
 
7. Consider a final plat of Ming Addition, comprising 2.5606 acres, located at 

2900 Elm Grove Road, Belton, TX, on the west side of Elm Grove Road, south 
of Decker Road, in Belton’s ETJ. (Audio 17:03) 

 
Councilmember Holmes made a motion for approval of the final plat of Ming 
Addition, including approval of variances as follows:  
 
• Approval of variance to water flow requirement for fire protection; and 
• Approval of variance to the right of way standards for Elm Grove Road to be 

reduced from a Minor Arterial to a Minor Collector requiring 60’ of ROW and 
associated reduction in that classification on the Thoroughfare Plan in a future 
amendment. 



Belton City Council Meeting 
November 24, 2020 – Page 3  
 

  

 
The motion was seconded by Councilmember Pearson, and was unanimously 
approved upon a vote of 6-0. 

 
8. Consider a final plat of Three Creeks Phase VIII, comprising 33.81 acres, 

located generally east of FM 1670 and south of IH-14, on the south side of 
Three Creeks Blvd., near its intersection with Rocking M Lane, in Belton’s ETJ. 
(Audio 21:33) 

 
Councilmember Leigh made a motion for approval of the final plat of Three Creeks 
Phase VIII contingent on meeting the conditions in Staff letter to the applicant dated 
November 12, 2020. The motion was seconded by Councilmember Holmes and was 
unanimously approved upon a vote of 6-0. 

 
Miscellaneous 
 
9. Hold a public hearing and consider an ordinance amending Chapter 22, Article 

VI, Section 22-106, Schedule A of the Code of Ordinances regarding traffic 
schedules and speed limit regulations. (Audio 27:33) 

 
Public Hearing: No one spoke for or against. 
 
The following will be added to Schedule A for traffic signage: 
 
Hubbard Branch Phase 1 
• A stop sign at the northwest corner of Settlers Oak Drive facing west at its 

intersection with Fossil Trail. 
• A stop sign at the southeast corner of Settlers Oak Drive facing east at its 

intersection with Leon Overlook Trail. 
• A stop sign at the southeast corner of Cedar Glen Drive facing east at its 

intersection with Leon Overlook Trail. 
• A stop sign at southeast corner of Cowgirls Trail facing east at its intersection 

with Leon Overlook Trail. 
• A stop sign at southeast corner of Belle Hubbard Trail facing east at its 

intersection of Leon Overlook Trail. 
• A stop sign at northwest corner of Belle Hubbard Trail facing west at its 

intersection of Leon Overlook Trail. 
• A stop sign at the northwest corner of Cowgirl Trail facing west at is intersection 

of Fossil Trail. 
• A stop sign at the northwest corner of Cedar Glen Drive facing west at its 

intersection of Fossil Trail. 
• A stop sign at the southeast corner of Belle Hubbard Trail facing east at its 

intersection of OT Tyler Drive. 
• A stop sign at northeast corner of OT Tyler Drive facing east of its intersection 

of FM436/Holland Road. 



Belton City Council Meeting 
November 24, 2020 – Page 4  
 

  

• A stop sign at northeast corner of Leon Overlook Trail facing east of its 
intersection of FM 436/Holland Road. 

 
West Canyon Trails Phase 1 and 2 
• A stop sign at southwest corner of Daniel Drive facing west of its intersection of 

Long Creek Lane. 
• A stop sign at northwest corner of Daniel Drive facing east of its intersection of 

Adam Lane. 
• A stop sign at northwest corner of Alan Trails Facing north of its intersection of 

Ayham Trails. 
• A stop sign at southeast corner of Alan Trails facing south of its intersection of 

West Avenue O. 
• A stop sign at southwest corner of Ayham Trails facing west of its intersection 

of Long Creek Lane. 
• A stop sign at southeast corner of Long Creek Lane facing south at its 

intersection of West Avenue O. 
 

Sendero Estates 
• A stop sign at northwest corner of Sendero Estates Drive facing north at its 

intersection of US 190 Highway. 
• A 25 mph speed limit sign on northbound side of Sendero Estates Drive near 

intersection of Sendero Estates Drive and US 190 Highway. 
• A stop sign at southeast corner of Sendero Estates Drive facing south at its 

intersection of Charbray Drive. 
• A 25 mph speed limit sign on eastbound side of Charbray Drive east of Sendero 

Estates and Charbray Drive intersection. 
• A 25 mph speed limit sign on southbound side of Galloway Drive near 

intersection of Galloway Drive and James Ridge Dr. 
• A stop sign on southeast corner of Galloway Drive facing south at its 

intersection of Digby Drive. 
• A 25 mph speed limit sign on westbound side of Digby Drive near intersection 

of Holstein Drive and Digby Drive. 
• A stop sign on northeast corner of Digby Drive facing east at its intersection of 

Damascus Drive. 
• A 25 mph speed limit sign on southbound side of Damascus Drive near the 

intersection of Damascus Drive and Digby Drive. 
• A 25 mph speed limit sign on the westbound side of Charbray Drive near 

intersection of Charbray Drive and Sendero Estates Drive. 
• A stop sign on southwest corner of Victoria Meadow Drive facing west at its 

intersection of Galloway Drive. 
• A stop sign on northeast corner of Victoria Meadow Drive facing south at its 

intersection of Damascus Drive. 
• A stop sign on northeast corner of James Ridge Drive facing south at its 

intersection of Damascus Drive. 



Belton City Council Meeting 
November 24, 2020 – Page 5  
 

  

• A stop sign at southwest corner of James Ridge Drive facing west at its 
intersection of Galloway Drive. 

• A stop sign on northwest corner of Holstein Drive facing north at its intersection 
of Digby Drive. 

• A stop sign on southeast corner of Damascus Drive facing south at tits 
intersection of Braford Dr. 

• A stop sign southwest corner of Digby Drive facing west at its intersection of 
South Wheat Road. 
 

Downtown 
• A stop sign at northwest corner of East Street facing north at its intersection of 

Water Street 
• A stop sign at southwest corner of Water Street facing west at its intersection of 

East Street 
• A stop sign at southeast corner of East Street facing south at its intersection of 

Water Street 
• A stop sign at northeast corner of Water Street facing east at its intersection of 

East Street. 
 
Upon a motion by Councilmember Pearson, and a second by Councilmember 
Holmes, Item #9, including the following captioned ordinance, was unanimously 
approved by a vote of 6-0. 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 2020-46 
 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF BELTON, TEXAS, 
AMENDING CHAPTER 22, ARTICLE VI, SECTION 22 OF THE CODE OF 
ORDINANCES, AMENDING SCHEDULE A REGARDING TRAFFIC CONTROL 
SIGNS IN CITY STREETS; REPEALING ALL ORDINANCES TO THE EXTENT 
THEY ARE IN CONFLICT; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; AND PROVIDING 
AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
10. Consider authorizing the City Manager to enter into a professional services 

agreement with Kasberg, Patrick and Associates for design of the Heritage 
Park expansion. (Audio 29:36) 

 
Upon a motion for approval by Councilmember Kirkley, and a second by 
Councilmember Bucher, Item #10 was unanimously approved upon a vote of 6-0. 

 
Work Session 
 
11. Receive a presentation and discuss scope of work on the E. 13th Avenue 

Sidewalks project. (Audio 43:42) 
 

Director of Public Works Angellia Points presented Exhibit “A.” No action was 
required of the Council. 



Belton City Council Meeting 
November 24, 2020 – Page 6  
 

  

12. Receive a presentation from Turley Associates regarding the public 
infrastructure development plans around the Belton ISD school site at Loop 
121 and Shanklin Road. (Audio 56:58) 
 
Director of Public Works Angellia Points and Jennifer Ryken of Turley Associates 
presented Exhibit “B.” City Manager Sam Listi discussed a development plan for the 
area, as well as possible funding mechanisms for the needed infrastructure. No 
action was required of the Council. 
 

There being no further business, the Mayor adjourned the meeting at 7:03 p.m. 
 
 
 

_____________________________  
Wayne Carpenter, Mayor 

ATTEST: 
 
 
_____________________________  
Amy M. Casey, City Clerk 



E 
13

TH
A

V
E 

SI
D

EW
A

LK
S

Sc
op

e 
of

 W
or

k 
D

isc
us

sio
n 

–
Up

d
a

te
 

N
ov

em
be

r 2
4,

 2
02

0

Exhibit "A"



E 
13

TH
A

V
E 

SI
D

EW
A

LK
S 

–
SU

M
M

A
RY

 


A
w

a
rd

ed
 T

xD
O

T
Tr

an
sp

or
ta

tio
n 

A
lte

rn
a

tiv
es

 P
ro

gr
a

m
 (T

A
P)

 g
ra

nt
 fu

nd
in

g 
fo

r E
 1

3th
A

ve
 

sid
ew

al
ks

 in
 2

01
9


KT

M
PO

 p
ro

je
ct

 sc
op

e 
w

a
s t

o 
in

st
a

ll n
ew

 si
d

ew
al

ks
/S

UP
 o

n 
th

e 
no

rth
 s

id
e 

of
 E

 1
3th

A
ve

 
be

tw
ee

n 
M

ai
n 

an
d 

O
ld

 W
ac

o 
Ro

ad


C

ha
lle

ng
es

: R
O

W
 re

qu
ire

d
 fr

om
 3

6 
p

ro
pe

rty
 o

w
ne

rs
, s

tri
ct

 ti
m

el
in

e 
fro

m
 T

xD
O

T
to

 m
ee

t 
te

rm
s o

f g
ra

nt
 (b

id
 in

 2
02

3)


St

af
f e

va
lu

at
ed

 o
pt

io
ns

; p
re

se
nt

ed
 o

p
tio

n 
to

 T
xD

O
T

an
d

 g
ai

ne
d 

p
re

lim
in

ar
y 

a
p

p
ro

va
l


D

isc
us

se
d 

pr
oj

ec
t w

ith
 C

ou
nc

il 
on

 O
ct

 1
3,

 2
02

0


D

ire
ct

io
n 

w
as

 to
 p

ol
l p

ro
pe

rty
 o

w
ne

rs
 o

n 
su

pp
or

t f
or

 p
ro

je
ct

 a
nd

 b
ik

e 
la

ne
s, 

un
de

rs
ta

nd
in

g 
w

he
re

 a
 b

ik
e 

la
ne

 w
as

 st
rip

ed
, o

n-
st

re
et

 p
a

rk
in

g 
w

ou
ld

 b
e 

p
ro

hi
b

ite
d

 


To

da
y’

s 
go

al
: d

ef
in

e 
th

e 
sc

op
e 

of
 th

e 
pr

oj
ec

t s
o 

KT
M

PO
-S

TIP
 a

pp
ro

va
l c

an
 b

e 
ob

ta
in

ed
, 

an
d 

de
sig

n 
ca

n 
be

gi
n.

 



14
’ T

ra
ve

l W
id

th
14

’ T
ra

ve
l W

id
th

N
or

th
 S

id
e

So
ut

h 
Si

de

E 
13

th
Av

e 
–

Pr
op

os
ed

 D
es

ig
n

Re
co

ns
tr

uc
t s

ou
th

 si
de

 si
de

w
al

ks
; a

dd
 1

 o
r 2

 b
ik

e 
la

ne
s

Re
co

ns
tr

uc
t 4

’ s
id

ew
al

k 
to

 
m

ee
t A

DA
; r

ec
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
sid

ew
al

k 
ra

m
ps

Po
w

er
 

Po
le

s/
Ge

ne
ra

l 
RO

W
 L

in
e

Po
w

er
 

Po
le

s/
Ge

ne
ra

l 
RO

W
 L

in
e

5’
 B

ik
e 

La
ne

5’
 B

ik
e 

La
ne

1.
Ex

is
tin

g 
si

de
w

al
k 

be
tw

ee
n 

M
ai

n 
an

d 
Pa

rk
 L

an
e 

to
 b

e 
re

co
ns

tr
uc

te
d,

 a
s n

ee
de

d 
to

 m
ee

t A
DA

; r
ec

on
st

ru
ct

 a
ll 

pe
de

st
ria

n 
ra

m
ps

, c
on

st
ru

ct
 n

ew
 4

’ s
id

ew
al

k 
be

tw
ee

n 
th

e 
dr

ai
na

ge
 c

ha
nn

el
 to

 F
M

81
7.

 A
ls

o,
 co

ns
tr

uc
t 4

’ s
id

ew
al

k 
on

 n
or

th
 si

de
 o

f E
 

13
th

Av
e 

be
tw

ee
n 

ex
is

tin
g 

nu
rs

in
g 

ho
m

e 
si

de
w

al
k 

an
d 

Pa
rk

 L
an

e 
w

ith
in

 e
xi

st
in

g 
RO

W
. 

2.
St

rip
e 

5’
 b

ik
e 

la
ne

 b
et

w
ee

n 
M

ai
n 

an
d 

FM
81

7;
 5

’ i
s m

ea
su

re
d 

fr
om

 fa
ce

 o
f c

ur
b.

 
3.

Pa
in

t c
ur

b 
al

on
g 

bi
ke

 la
ne

(s
) f

or
 n

o 
on

-s
tr

ee
t p

ar
ki

ng
.

19
’ T

ra
ve

l W
id

th
19

’ T
ra

ve
l W

id
th



Park

E 
13

th
Av

e 
–

Pr
op

os
ed

 
De

sig
n 

(A
pp

ro
ve

d 
by

 T
xD

O
T)

Re
co

ns
tr

uc
t e

xi
st

in
g,

 
as

 n
ee

de
d 

(g
re

en
) &

 
in

st
al

l n
ew

 w
he

re
 

m
iss

in
g 

(o
ra

ng
e)

. 
Bi

ke
 la

ne
 in

 w
hi

te
. 

(N
um

be
r o

f b
ik

e 
la

ne
s T

BD
)

Pr
ov

id
e 

cr
os

sin
g 

to
 

Pa
rk

 L
an

e



PR
O

PE
RT

Y 
O

W
N

ER
 R

ES
PO

N
SE

S


73

 p
ro

pe
rty

 o
w

ne
rs

 c
on

ta
ct

ed
 v

ia
 le

tt
er


17

 re
sp

on
se

s w
er

e 
re

ce
iv

ed
 


G

en
er

al
ly

, a
ll s

up
po

rte
d 

sid
ew

al
ks

 a
lo

ng
 E

 1
3th

A
ve


Su

pp
or

t: 
M

a
ny

 su
pp

or
te

d 
bi

ke
 la

ne
s, 

ci
tin

g 
sa

fe
ty

 re
as

on
s. 

So
m

e 
su

p
p

or
te

d
 b

ik
e 

la
ne

s t
o 

d
isc

ou
ra

ge
 o

n-
st

re
et

 p
a

rk
in

g.
 


Pr

ot
es

t: 
5 

pr
ot

es
te

d
 b

ik
e 

la
ne

s a
nd

/o
r t

a
ki

ng
 a

w
a

y 
on

-s
tre

et
 p

a
rk

in
g;

 th
os

e 
pr

ot
es

tin
g 

w
er

e 
a

ll l
oc

a
te

d
 a

lo
ng

 n
or

th
 si

d
e 

of
 E

 1
3th

A
ve

. N
o 

on
e 

on
 so

ut
h 

sid
e 

of
 

E 
13

th
A

ve
 p

ro
te

st
ed

 th
e 

bi
ke

 la
ne

s. 


N
or

th
 S

id
e 

Pr
op

er
ty

 O
w

ne
rs


2 

in
 su

pp
or

t +
 1

 re
qu

es
t f

ro
m

 P
ar

k 
Pl

ac
e 

M
an

or
 to

 w
ai

ve
 o

n-
st

re
et

 p
ar

ki
ng

 ti
ck

et
in

g 
d

ur
in

g 
ev

en
ts

 


5 
pr

ot
es

ts
 b

ik
e 

la
ne

s 


So

ut
h 

Si
de

 P
ro

pe
rty

 O
w

ne
rs


9 

in
 su

pp
or

t


N
o 

pr
ot

es
ts

 



Su
pp

or
t -

12
Pr

ot
es

ts
 -

5
73

 L
et

te
rs

 S
en

t
17

 R
es

po
nd

ed



D
IS

C
US

SI
O

N
 IT

EM
S


In

 a
d

d
iti

on
 to

 th
e 

sid
ew

a
lk

 re
co

ns
tru

ct
io

n,
 a

s n
ee

d
ed

, a
lo

ng
 so

ut
h 

sid
e 

of
 E

 1
3th

A
ve

, o
ne

 o
r t

w
o 

bi
ke

 la
ne

s w
ill 

be
 st

rip
ed

 in
 th

e 
pa

ve
m

en
t.


A

re
 o

ne
 o

r t
w

o 
bi

ke
 la

ne
s d

es
ire

d
?


If 

on
e 

bi
ke

 la
ne

, w
hi

ch
 si

d
e 

(n
or

th
 o

r s
ou

th
)?

 


N

ex
t S

te
ps


D

ec
id

e 
on

 b
ik

e 
la

ne
(s

)  


KT

M
PO

 a
m

en
dm

en
t t

o 
pr

oj
ec

t s
co

pe


RF

Q
 fo

r e
ng

in
ee

rin
g 

se
rv

ic
es

 a
fte

r a
pp

ro
va

l


Be

gi
n 

de
sig

n



LO
O

P 
12

1 
&

 S
H

A
N

K
LI

N
 R

D
C

IT
Y

 O
F 

BE
LT

O
N

 &
 B

IS
D

 D
EV

EL
O

PM
EN

T
 P

LA
N

N
IN

G

EXHIBIT "B"



LO
O

P 
12

1 
&

 S
H

A
N

K
LI

N
 R

O
A

D
BI

SD
 D

EV
EL

O
PM

EN
T

 P
LA

N
N

IN
G

•
In

tr
od

uc
tio

ns
 –

Sa
m

 L
is

ti,
 C

ity
 

M
an

ag
er

•
Pr

oj
ec

t P
ur

po
se

 &
 B

ac
kg

ro
un

d 
–

A
ng

el
lia

 P
oi

nt
s, 

P.E
., 

Pu
bl

ic
 W

or
ks

 
D

ire
ct

or

•
Pr

es
en

ta
tio

n 
–

Je
nn

ife
r 

R
yk

en
, P

.E
., 

C
.F.

M
., T

ur
le

y 
A

ss
oc

ia
te

s 
In

c.



O
V

ER
V

IE
W

•
Pl

an
ni

ng
 To

ol
 fo

r 
th

e 
C

ity
 o

f B
el

to
n

•
Ev

al
ua

tio
n 

of
 In

fr
as

tr
uc

tu
re

 
Im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 to

 th
e 

A
re

a

•
C

oo
rd

in
at

io
n 

an
d 

In
pu

t

•
Pr

es
en

te
d 

to
 B

IS
D

 F
ac

ili
tie

s 
C

om
m

itt
ee

 
on

 N
ov

em
be

r 
18

, 2
02

0 
an

d 
w

as
 w

el
l 

re
ce

iv
ed

 

BI
SD

D
EV

EL
O

PM
EN

T 
PL

A
N

N
IN

G

C
ity

 o
f 

Be
lto

n

BI
SD

T
xD

O
T



BI
SD

PR
O

PE
RT

Y

•
10

8.
59

 A
cr

es

•
W

. L
oo

p 
12

1 
to

 t
he

 N
or

th

•
Sh

an
kl

in
 R

oa
d 

to
 th

e 
W

es
t

•
Be

ll 
C

ou
nt

y 
Ex

po
 C

en
te

r 
to

 t
he

 E
as

t

•
Be

ll 
C

ou
nt

y 
Ju

st
ic

e 
C

en
te

r 
to

 th
e 

N
or

th
.



T
H

O
RO

U
G

H
FA

R
E 

PL
A

N
N

IN
G

•
W

. L
oo

p 
12

1

•
Sh

an
kl

in
 R

oa
d

•
So

ut
hw

es
t 

Pa
rk

w
ay

•
Lo

ca
tio

n 
fo

r 
Li

gh
te

d 
In

te
rs

ec
tio

n



W
.  

LO
O

P 
12

1

•
40

 ft
 W

id
e

•
1 

Tr
av

el
 L

an
e 

Ea
ch

 D
ire

ct
io

n

•
M

aj
or

 A
rt

er
ia

l

•
Po

rt
io

ns
 F

un
de

d 
by

 T
xD

O
T

 fo
r W

id
en

in
g 

an
d 

U
pg

ra
di

ng

•
T

xD
O

T
 A

ct
iv

el
y 

A
cq

ui
ri

ng
 R

ig
ht

-o
f-W

ay

Lo
ok

in
g 

Ea
st

 o
f P

ro
pe

rt
y

Lo
ok

in
g W

es
t 

of
 P

ro
pe

rt
y



SH
A

N
K

LI
N

 R
O

A
D

•
20

 ft
 W

id
e

•
M

aj
or

 C
ol

le
ct

or

•
C

ur
re

nt
ly

 a
t 

R
ur

al
 S

ta
nd

ar
ds

•
A

dj
ac

en
t 

to
 S

ub
je

ct
 P

ro
pe

rt
y

•
Sh

ar
p 

Sh
or

t 
C

ur
ve

 t
o 

In
te

rs
ec

tio
n

•
In

te
rs

ec
tio

n 
w

ith
 W

 L
oo

p 
12

1 
is

 in
 a

 C
ur

ve
 

Lo
ok

in
g 

So
ut

h 
N

ea
r

In
te

rs
ec

tio
n 

Lo
op

 1
21



T
X

D
O

T

•
Pr

el
im

in
ar

y 
D

es
ig

n

•
N

ot
 F

un
de

d 
in

 S
ub

je
ct

 A
re

a

•
R

ai
se

d 
M

ed
ia

n/
Is

la
nd

•
D

ed
ic

at
ed

 L
ef

t T
ur

ns

•
2 

La
ne

s 
of

 T
ra

ffi
c 

Ea
ch

 D
ire

ct
io

n

•
W

ar
ra

nt
 S

tu
dy

 fo
r T

ra
ffi

c 
Li

gh
t



BI
SD

PO
SS

IB
LE

 F
U

T
U

R
E 

U
SE

 &
 S

TA
T

IS
T

IC
S

•
El

em
en

ta
ry

 S
ch

oo
l: 

  1
6-

ac
re

 c
am

pu
s, 

80
0 

st
ud

en
ts

, 1
00

 s
ta

ff

•
M

id
dl

e 
Sc

ho
ol

:  
Lo

w
 p

ro
ba

bi
lit

y 
of

 a
 m

id
dl

e 
sc

ho
ol

 b
ei

ng
 b

ui
lt 

on
 t

hi
s 

pr
op

er
ty

•
H

ig
hs

ch
oo

l: 
 8

5-
ac

re
 c

am
pu

s, 
24

00
 s

tu
de

nt
s, 

20
0 

st
af

f

•
A

th
le

tic
 C

om
pl

ex
 w

ith
 F

ie
ld

s 
an

d/
or

 
N

at
at

or
iu

m



SH
A

N
K

LI
N

 R
O

A
D

 R
EA

LI
G

N
M

EN
T

•
M

in
im

iz
es

 Im
pa

ct
 to

 B
IS

D
 S

ite

•
U

pg
ra

de
 t

o 
a 

M
aj

or
 C

ol
le

ct
or

•
N

ot
 R

ec
om

m
en

de
d 

as
 P

ri
m

ar
y 

ac
ce

ss

•
N

ot
 W

el
l S

ui
te

d 
Fo

r T
ra

ffi
c 

Li
gh

t



T
R

A
FF

IC
 &

 
G

RO
W

T
H

•
A

ve
ra

ge
 A

nn
ua

l D
ai

ly
 T

ri
ps

 
20

18

•
G

ro
w

th
 &

 T
ra

ffi
c 

fr
om

 T
hr

ee
 

C
re

ek
s

•
So

ut
hw

es
t P

ar
kw

ay
 &

 
C

on
ne

ll 
St

re
et

•
Pr

op
er

ty
 is

 w
es

t 
of

 IH
-3

5 
an

d 
so

ut
h 

of
 IH

-1
4 

5,
85

3 
A

A
D

T

6,
45

7 
A

A
D

T

6,
36

5 
A

A
D

T
55

,4
44

 
A

A
D

T

71
,4

69
A

A
D

T



SO
U

T
H

W
ES

T
 P

A
R

K
W

AY

•
Ex

te
nd

 S
W

 P
ar

kw
ay

 S
ou

th

•
C

on
st

ru
ct

ed
 a

s 
a 

M
in

or
 C

ol
le

ct
or

 to
 

N
or

th

•
G

oo
d 

Lo
ca

tio
n 

fo
r 

Li
gh

te
d 

In
te

rs
ec

tio
n

•
Lo

ca
l B

IS
D

 R
oa

d

•
C

re
at

es
 D

ev
el

op
m

en
t O

pp
or

tu
ni

tie
s



T
H

O
RO

U
G

H
FA

R
E 

R
EC

O
M

M
EN

D
AT

IO
N

S

•
R

ea
lig

nm
en

t a
nd

 R
ec

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

of
 S

ha
nk

lin
 R

oa
d 

to
 a

 M
od

ifi
ed

 M
aj

or
 C

ol
le

ct
or

•
Ex

te
nd

in
g 

So
ut

hw
es

t P
ar

kw
ay

 to
 th

e 
So

ut
h 

of
 W

. L
oo

p 
12

1,
 C

on
st

ru
ct

in
g 

as
 a

 M
od

ifi
ed

 
M

aj
or

 C
ol

le
ct

or

•
C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

of
 a

 L
oc

al
 R

oa
d 

C
on

ne
ct

in
g 

So
ut

hw
es

t P
ar

kw
ay

 to
 th

e 
BI

SD
 P

ro
pe

rty



SH
A

N
K

LI
N

 R
O

A
D



SO
U

T
H

W
ES

T
 P

A
R

K
W

AY
 &

 B
IS

D
 E

X
T

EN
SI

O
N

 R
O

A
D



U
T

IL
IT

Y
 P

LA
N

N
IN

G



U
T

IL
IT

Y
 R

EC
O

M
M

EN
D

AT
IO

N
S

•
Ex

te
nd

 8
” W

at
er

lin
e 

So
ut

h 
Al

on
g 

S.
W

. P
ar

kw
ay

 a
nd

 E
as

t A
lo

ng
 B

IS
D

 E
xt

en
si

on
 R

d.

•
BI

SD
 In

te
rn

al
 L

oo
p 

fro
m

 1
8”

 to
 th

e 
8”

 W
at

er
lin

e

•
Ta

p 
18

” W
at

er
lin

e 
on

 S
ha

nk
lin

(n
ee

de
d 

fo
r l

oo
pe

d 
co

nn
ec

tio
n 

an
d 

ca
pa

ci
ty

 o
f T

hr
ee

 
C

re
ek

s 
Su

bd
iv

is
io

n)
 

•
Li

ft 
St

at
io

n 
on

 B
IS

D
 P

ro
pe

rty

•
Fo

rc
e 

M
ai

n 
Al

te
rn

at
e 

Lo
ca

tio
n

•
Pu

m
p 

to
 E

xi
st

in
g 

M
an

ho
le

 E
as

t o
f V

et
 C

lin
ic

.



R
IG

H
T-

O
F-

W
AY

A
C

Q
U

IS
IT

IO
N

•
R

.O
.W

 fr
om

 B
IS

D
:  

1.
43

9 
ac

.

•
R

.O
.W

. f
or

 S
.W

. P
K

W
Y

 &
 

BI
SD

 E
xt

en
si

on
 R

d:
  3

.2
92



EA
SE

M
EN

T
A

C
Q

U
IS

IT
IO

N

•
Ea

se
m

en
ts

 n
ee

de
d 

fr
om

 B
IS

D
 

Pr
op

er
ty

: 0
.4

92
 a

c.

•
N

ee
de

d 
fo

r 
ut

ili
tie

s 
ou

ts
id

e 
of

 
RO

W
: w

at
er

lin
es

, s
ew

er
 li

ne
s, 

el
ec

tr
ic

, t
el

ec
om

, e
tc

. 



IN
FR

A
ST

RU
C

T
U

R
E 

IM
PR

O
V

EM
EN

T
 C

O
ST

S

•
Sh

an
kl

in
R

oa
d 

(M
aj

or
 C

ol
le

ct
or

):
$1

.3
M

•
Sh

an
kl

in
R

oa
d 

(L
oc

al
 R

oa
d)

:
$5

50
,0

00

•
So

ut
hw

es
t 

Pa
rk

w
ay

 (
M

aj
or

 C
ol

le
ct

or
):

$1
.0

M

•
BI

SD
 E

xt
en

si
on

 R
oa

d 
(L

oc
al

 R
oa

d)
:

$4
50

,0
00

•
U

til
iti

es
 (W

at
er

, S
ew

er
, L

ift
 S

ta
tio

n)
:

$4
50

,0
00

To
ta

l:
$ 

3.
75

M

C
os

ts
 in

cl
ud

e 
pr

of
es

si
on

al
 s

er
vi

ce
s 

(d
es

ig
n)

, g
eo

te
ch

ni
ca

l i
nv

es
tig

at
io

ns
, T

D
LR

 r
ev

ie
w

, e
nv

iro
nm

en
ta

l, 
et

c.
C

os
ts

 to
 n

ot
 in

cl
ud

e 
dr

ai
na

ge
 im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
, w

hi
ch

 w
ou

ld
 b

e 
ad

dr
es

se
d 

du
ri

ng
 t

he
 B

IS
D

 s
ite

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t p
ha

se
.



Q
U

ES
T

IO
N

S?



City Council Agenda Item 
December 8, 2020 

Page 1 of 2   
 

Staff Report – City Council Agenda Item 
 
 
Agenda Item #4 
 
Consider appointments/reappointments to the following Boards/Commissions: 
 

A. Ethics Commission 
B. Hill Country Transit District Board 
C. Library Board 
D. Parks Board 
E. Building and Standards Commission 
F. Tax Increment Reinvestment Zone Board 
G. Central Texas Housing Consortium Board 

 
 
Originating Department 
 
Administration – Amy M. Casey, City Clerk 
 
 
Background 
 
A. Ethic Commission 

 
With the retirement of former Mayor Grayson, Charla Peters will rotate off the Ethics 
Commission. Newly elected Councilmember Bucher is recommending Tyson McLaughlin 
be appointed as his representative. All other Ethics Commission members will continue 
serving until May 2021. All terms are 1-year and appointments coincide with elections. 
 

B. Hill Country Transit District Board 
 

Dan Kirkley’s term on this board ends on February 26, 2021. The Transit District’s 
General Manager has requested a reappointment be completed quickly. Councilmember 
Kirkley is willing to serve another 4-year term, and Mayor Carpenter is recommending 
him for reappointment. 

 
C. Library Board of Directors 
 

Valerie Ureste’s term on the Library Board of Directors ended on November 30, 2020. 
Staff has not been able to contact Ms. Ureste in some time; therefore, the Mayor is 
recommending Roxanne Sanders to replace her and serve a 3-year term. 
 
 
 
 



City Council Agenda Item 
December 8, 2020 

Page 2 of 2   
 

D. Parks Board 
 

Daniel Bucher was recently elected to the City Council, and therefore had to resign from 
the Parks Board. Mayor Carpenter is recommending Oscar Bersoza to fill his unexpired 
term ending June 20, 2022. 
 

E. Building and Standards Commission 
 

The Building and Standards Commission was recently created and replaced the Housing 
Board of Adjustments Board. Four regular members were appointed on November 10, 
2020, which left one regular member and four alternate positions available. Mayor 
Carpenter is recommending Cari Starritt-Burnett as a regular member, and hopes to 
provide names for alternates at the meeting. 
 

F. Tax Increment Reinvestment Zone Board 
 

The terms of David K. Leigh, Craig Pearson and Blair Williams end January 13, 2021. 
Mayor Carpenter is recommending all for reappointment to another 2-year term. Bell 
County is expected to reappoint Judge Blackburn and Commissioner Schneider to the 
TIRZ Board on December 7th. 
 

G. Central Texas Housing Consortium Board 
 

Linda Angel represents the City of Belton on this board, and her term ends January 25, 
2021. Ms. Angel has expressed a desire to continuing serving in this capacity, so Mayor 
Carpenter is recommending her for reappointment to another 2-year term. 

 
 
Fiscal Impact:  None 
 
 
Recommendation: Recommend approval of the appointments/reappointments. 
 
 
Attachments: None 



City Council Agenda Item 
December 8, 2020 

Page 1 of 2 
 

Staff Report – City Council Agenda Item 
 
Agenda Item #5 
 
Conduct a drawing of lots to determine place numbers for future City Council elections. 
   
 
Originating Department 
 
Administration – Amy M Casey, City Clerk 
 
Summary Information 
 
On November 3, 2020, Belton citizens voted to change to 3-year terms for Councilmembers. 
This also entailed a change to at-large places. As a part of the transition plan, place 
numbers need to be assigned by the drawing of lots. 
 
Councilmembers David K. Leigh, Craig Pearson, John R. Holmes, Sr., as well as Mayor Pro 
Tem Dan Kirkley are up for election in May 2021. They will be drawing for Places 1, 2, 3 and 
4. Places 1 and 2 will serve a 2-year term, and Places 3 and 4 will serve a 3-year term. 
 
Those elected at the November 2020 election include: Mayor Wayne Carpenter, 
Councilmember Guy O’Banion and Councilmember Daniel Bucher. They will be drawing for 
Places 5, 6 and 7. Places 5, 6 and 7 will serve 3-year terms following the May 2022 election. 
 
Beginning in May 2022, the Mayor and Mayor Pro Tem will be selected by the Council and 
will serve 1-year terms. 

 



City Council Agenda Item 
December 8, 2020 

Page 2 of 2 
 

 
Fiscal Impact 
 
None 
 
Recommendation 
 
Conduct drawing of lots. 
 
Attachments 
 
None 



City Council Agenda Item 
December 8, 2020 

Page 1 of 2   
 

 
Staff Report – City Council Agenda Item 
 
 
        

Date:    December 8, 2020  
       Request:   License Agreement 

Applicant:   Randy Taylor Custom 
Builders  

 
Agenda Item #6 
     
Consider authorizing a license agreement with Randy Taylor Custom Builders to allow an entry 
sign for West Canyon Trails Subdivision in the public right of way located at the intersection of 
West Avenue O and Alan Trails.  
 
Originating Department:  
 
Planning – Tina Moore, Planner 
 
Case Summary 
 
The developer of the West Canyon Trails subdivision has requested permission to install a 
free-standing monument sign and landscaping in a median at the entrance of the subdivision 
on West Avenue O at Alan Trails. This median is located within the public right-of-way and 
requires authorization from the City to permit the construction. We have drafted an agreement 
to protect the City’s interest while allowing for the sign’s construction. The agreement requires 
the developer and future Homeowners’ Association to:  
 

• Provide necessary insurance that meets the requirements of the Right-of-Way 
Management Ordinance (Ordinance 2017-40);  

• Provide on-going maintenance for the landscaped area; and 
• Hold the City harmless in claims arising from the use of the property.  

 
Should the City decide to terminate this agreement, a 30-day notice to the developer or 
successor is required for the removal of the sign.  
 
We have reviewed the proposed sign for compliance with the Sign Ordinance. The sign will be 
constructed of limestone blocks with a cap top measuring 6’ tall. The text or sign face is 
approximately 38 square feet. Section 38.22, Subdivision Entry Signs, of the Zoning Codes, 
requires entry signs to have a maximum face of 40 square feet and a maximum height of 6’. 
Irrigated landscaping is also required in the median which totals approximately 960 square feet; 
the applicant is proposing to xeriscape. We are satisfied there will be no visibility obstructions 
resulting from the improvement in the street right-of-way. The applicant has complied with all 
requirements of the Zoning Code.  
 



City Council Agenda Item 
December 8, 2020 

Page 2 of 2   
 

Recommendation 
 
Recommend approval of a license agreement with Randy Taylor Custom Builders to allow an 
entry sign for West Canyon Trails Subdivision in the public right-of-way located at the 
intersection of West Avenue O and Alan Trails.  
 
Attachments 
License Agreement 
West Canyon Trails location map 
Proposed sign location map and details 
Artist rendition of sign 
Insurance Certificate 



















Regional Firearms 
Training Facility





Case Summary
 Authorizing Sign in Public Right of 

Way.
 Developer and Successor agree to 

 Provide Necessary Insurance;
 Provide On-going Maintenance of 

Landscape;
 Hold City Harmless in Claims 

Arising from Use of Property.
 City reserves the right to 

terminate agreement.  Must 
provide 30 day notice  





Recommendation:
 Recommend approval to authorize a license 

agreement with Randy Taylor Custom Builders to 
allow an entry sign for West Canyon Trails Subdivision 
in the public right of way located at the intersection 
of West Avenue O and Alan Trails. 



City Council Agenda Item 
December 8, 2020 

Page 1 of 2   
 

Staff Report – City Council Agenda Item 
 
 
Agenda Item #7 
     
Consider authorizing an administrative services agreement with the Belton Economic 
Development Corporation. 
 
 
Originating Department 
 
Administration – Sam A. Listi, City Manager 
BEDC – Cynthia Hernandez, Executive Director 
 
 
Summary Information 
 
The Belton Economic Development Corporation is in the process of relocating their offices 
to Central Avenue. With the relocation to downtown Belton, and within proximity to the City 
of Belton’s fiber line, the City has offered to provide IT and communication services to the 
Corporation. Historically, BEDC has been served by third-party providers through a contract 
for services and/or lease agreements. The City is proposing to offer these services at a fee 
of $5,000 per year and will include internet, telephone, network connectivity, secure file 
storage, desktop support and ongoing system maintenance. The City will also assist in 
hardware and software procurement as needed or scheduled. BEDC recognizes the 
benefits in obtaining these services from the City and wishes to enter into a formal 
agreement.  
 
With the development of this agreement for IT Services, BEDC staff has also requested a 
contract outlining the ongoing administrative services provided by the City of Belton at a fee 
of $7,500 each year. The Bylaws of the Corporation state that the Board may request 
services from an administrative department of the City of Belton and that the Board will 
reimburse the department for the agreed cost of the services. Although the City has 
provided these services for BEDC, likely since the creation of the Corporation, there is no 
documentation beyond a budget expenditure line item. Sales tax funded EDC’s have the 
option to contract these services from a third-party provider or conduct inhouse; however, 
BEDC recognizes the cost savings and benefits in working with the City of Belton. The 
agreement is a formality, but one that both BEDC staff and City staff feel is appropriate. 
 
The administrative services agreement was presented to the BEDC Board of Directors on 
December 1, 2020, and was unanimously approved. Staff seeks the City Council’s 
consideration in approving the administrative services agreement as presented.  
 



City Council Agenda Item 
December 8, 2020 

Page 2 of 2   
 

Fiscal Impact 
 
The administrative services fee of $7,500 was included in the BEDC budget. A budget 
amendment for IT services may be necessary later in the year as only $2,700 was allocated 
for IT services.  
 
Amount: $12,500 
   
Recommendation 
 
Staff recommends City Council approval on authorizing the City Manager to enter into an 
administrative services agreement with the Belton Economic Development Corporation. 
 
Attachments 
Administrative Services Agreement 
 
 



ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES CONTRACT 
 

THE STATE OF TEXAS § 
 
COUNTY OF BELL  § 
 
 This Administrative Services Contract (this “Agreement’) is made and entered into by and 
between the City of Belton, Texas (the “CITY”) and the Belton Economic Development 
Corporation (the “Corporation”). 
 
 WHEREAS, the City of the Corporation are working jointly toward the development and 
increase of businesses within the city through the use of tax revenues earned by the Corporation 
and planning several projects toward those ends; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City and the Corporation desire to enter into an agreement governing 
administration and management of projects currently contemplated, as well as future projects; 
and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City and the Corporation desire to enter into an agreement 
commemorating their prior agreements and understandings, establishing a framework for their 
continued cooperation toward providing for the health and welfare of the citizens of the City of 
Belton, Texas. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, for and in consideration of the mutual covenants, agreements and 
benefits accruing herein to each party, the parties to this Agreement hereby agree as follows: 
 
1. Legal and Financial Services 
 

The parties agree that if the City provides supplemental legal services, bond counsel or 
financial advisor services for the benefit of the Corporation, costs savings will be realized 
through the elimination of duplicated services. Accordingly, the parties agree that the 
Corporation may call upon the City Attorney or other professionals for the services it requires. 
In lieu of or in addition to the City Attorney, the Corporation may employ its own counsel and 
legal staff. 
 

2. Accounting Services 
 

The parties recognize that if the City provides services for the benefit of the Corporation 
through the City’s Finance Department, costs savings will be realized through the elimination 
of duplicated services. Accordingly, the parties agree that, subject to the right of the 
Corporation to have an independent audit performed at the end of each fiscal year, and in 
line with Section VII. Financial Services of the Corporation’s Bylaws, the City shall perform 
all finance and accounting functions for the Corporation, including, without limitation, the 
following: 
 



A. Banking. The City will manage the funds collected through the Section 4A tax. The funds 
will be maintained in the general disbursement account of the City but will be accounted 
for separately by the City in the Corporation Fund. All revenues collected through the 
Section 4A tax will be properly collateralized as are all City funds. Monthly bank 
statements will be received directly by the City. The Corporation will maintain no 
additional accounts outside of the City account. 

 
B. Investments. The revenues received through the Section 4A tax will be invested in 

approved investments as specified by the City’s Investment Policy. 
 

C. Financial Reporting. A complete set of financial statements for the Corporation, including 
a balance sheet and income statement, will be prepared at least quarterly by the City’s 
Finance Department and will be included in the City’s quarterly financial report. Copies of 
such financial statements will be distributed to the board. The activities of the Corporation 
will be reported in the annual budget of the City. 
 

D. Audits. An audit of the Corporation’s financial records will be performed annually by the 
City’s independent auditors in conjunction with the annual audit of the City at the end of 
the City’s fiscal year, and the findings of the independent auditor related to the use of all 
Section 4A tax funds and the interest earned thereon shall be included in the City’s 
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report. The Corporation agrees to pay ten percent 
(10%) of the cost to perform the audit in addition to all other costs listed herein. 
 

E. Cash Transactions. All deposits of revenues received by the corporation shall be made 
by the City. The Corporation shall remit to the Director of Finance any revenues, including 
donations or other contributions, received directly by the Corporation, within three 
business days of its receipt. All expenses incurred by the Corporation will be processed 
and paid by the City’s Finance Department. Proper approval and support documentation 
shall be attached to each invoice as required for all City transactions. Failure to adhere 
to these policies may result in the non-payment of associated expenses. 
 

F. Payroll. The City will create and maintain all payroll records of the Corporation, including 
time entry, pay rates, health insurance payments, retirement benefit deposits, tax 
reporting, and other personnel-related items that are routine in nature. 
 

3. Information Technology Services 
 

The parties recognize that if the City provides services for the benefit of the Corporation 
through the City’s Information Technology Department, costs savings will be realized through 
the elimination of duplicated services. Accordingly, the parties agree that, subject to the right 
of the Corporation to employ its own information technology professionals, the City shall 
perform all information technology for the Corporation, including, without limitation, the 
following: 
 
A. System Maintenance. The City’s Information Technology Department will support and 

maintain all network infrastructure (such as fiber optics and network connectivity), 



computer systems, printers/copiers, telephony (such as phone service with dedicated 
phone numbers), and a secure dedicated network file storage for all Corporation 
personnel. The information technology system will include a fiber optic connection 
between the Corporation’s address at 412 E. Central Avenue and the City’s servers. 

 
B. Asset Management. The City will procure hardware and software on behalf of the 

Corporation. The City shall maintain a list of all technology assets of the Corporation. The 
Corporation agrees to provide funding for asset acquisition as regularly scheduled and/or 
as needed. 
 

4. Consideration 
 

In consideration of the services received pursuant to this agreement, the Corporation will 
reimburse the City $12,500 per year which is a fair market fee for the above services provided 
by the City. This fee can be modified from time to time based upon project workload and 
justification. The fee is comprised of the following: 

 
     Accounting services    $7,500 
     Information technology services  $5,000 
 
5. Non-Assignability 
 

Neither party to this Agreement shall have the right to assign its rights or delegate its duties 
hereunder or any interest herein without the prior written consent of the other party. 
 

6. Governing Law 
 

This Agreement shall be governed by, and construed in accordance with, the laws of the 
State of Texas. 

 
7. Severability 
 

In the event that any one or more of the provisions contained in this Agreement shall for any 
reason be held to be invalid, illegal, or unenforceable in any respect, such invalidity, illegality, 
or unenforceability shall not affect any other provisions thereof, and this Agreement shall be 
construed as if such invalid, illegal or unenforceable provision had never been included 
herein. 
 

8. Amendment 
 

This Agreement may be amended or modified by the mutual agreement of the parties hereto, 
in writing to be attached to and incorporated into this Agreement but not to otherwise. 

  



9. Entire Agreement 
 

This Agreement merges all prior commitments and agreements of the parties and any oral 
or written agreements, understandings, or commitments not contained herein shall have no 
force or effect to alter any term or condition of this Agreement. All rights and obligations 
conveyed or contained in that other agreement are preempted and superseded  by this 
Agreement. 

 
10. Termination of Contract 
 

Either party may amend or terminate this contract in its entirety or segments of, at any time 
upon 60 days written notice requesting the change or termination. 

 
11. Addresses 
 

All notices and other communications between the parties shall be forwarded to the following 
addresses: 
 
  For the City:    For the Corporation: 
  P.O. Box 120    412 E. Central Avenue 
  Belton, Texas 76513  Belton, Texas 76513 

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused their respective officers thereunto duly 
authorized to execute and deliver this Agreement on the 8th day of December, 2020. 
 
        CITY OF BELTON, TEXAS 
 
 
 
        ____________________________ 
        Wayne Carpenter, Mayor 
 
        ATTEST: 
 
 
 
        _____________________________ 
        Amy M. Casey, City Clerk 
 
 
BELTON ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION 
 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Joe T. Shepperd, President 



City Council Agenda Item 
December 8, 2020 

Page 1 of 2   
 

Staff Report – City Council Agenda Item 
 
 
Agenda Item #8 
     
Consider authorizing the Executive Director of the Belton Economic Development 
Corporation to enter into an infrastructure development agreement with Premier Belton Two 
LLC for the construction of a waterline at 3463 IH-14. 
 
Originating Department 
 
Belton Economic Development Corporation – Cynthia Hernandez, Executive Director 
 
Summary Information 
 
The Belton Economic Development Corporation is currently working with Dog Ridge Water 
Supply Corporation (DRWSC) to design a waterline extension along IH-14 and FM 1670. In 
addition, BEDC has engaged KPA to design a wastewater line extension along IH-14 and 
intends to bid both water and wastewater improvements as one project. $1.6 million has 
been allocated in BEDC’s capital project fund for these improvements.  
 
Recently, BEDC has been approached by Shakeel Badarpura, with Premier Belton Two, 
LLC, about a possible development agreement for the planned infrastructure improvements 
to his site located at the southeast corner of IH-14 and FM 1670. Mr. Badapura is 
developing the TexStar Travel Center on this 3.282-acre lot, and water and wastewater 
improvements are a condition for permitting, as per the City of Belton. With the timing of the 
development ahead of the infrastructure improvements planned by BEDC for IH-14, and in 
an effort to avoid duplication of work, great efforts have been made by the Developer, City 
of Belton Planning Department, and BEDC to find a solution that will not hinder the 
scheduled development.  
 
After close coordination with the City, DRWSC, BEDC, and all engineers representing the 
entities, it has been determined that minor modifications will need to be made to the site 
plan so that BEDC can install a future wastewater line with little to no implications to the 
improvements made by the Developer. This is not possible with the waterline; therefore, 
BEDC is recommending the enclosed infrastructure development agreement with the 
Developer for a reimbursement not to exceed $78,500 for the waterline upon construction 
cost within 12 months.  
 
The BEDC Board of Directors unanimously approved the infrastructure development 
agreement on December 1, 2020. Although the funds are available and designated for 
infrastructure, they have not been presented as a budget line item for approval. With that, 
BEDC must seek Council approval for the proposed expenditure. BEDC seeks the City 
Council’s consideration in approving the infrastructure development agreement as 
presented.  



City Council Agenda Item 
December 8, 2020 

Page 2 of 2   
 

Fiscal Impact 
 
The reimbursement for the waterline improvements to this site will not exceed $78,500. This 
will be funded by BEDC’s capital projects fund.  
 
Amount: $78,500 
Budgeted:    Yes    No 
 
If not budgeted:   Budget Transfer     Contingency     Amendment Needed     
Capital Project Funds 
 
Funding Source(s):  
   
Recommendation 
 
The BEDC Board and staff recommend City Council authorize the Executive Director of the 
Belton Economic Development Corporation to enter into an infrastructure development 
agreement with Premier Belton Two LLC for the construction of a waterline at 3463 IH-14. 
 
Attachments 
 
Infrastructure development agreement 
Site Exhibit 
 
 



 1 

INFRASTRUCTURE DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT 

 This Infrastructure Development Agreement (this “Agreement”) is entered into as 

of December 1,2020 (the “Effective Date”) by and among Belton Economic Development 

Corporation, a Texas nonprofit corporation (“BEDC”), and Premier Belton Two, LLC, (the 

“Developer”).  BEDC and the Developer are individually sometimes called a “Party” and are 

collectively called the “Parties.” 

Recitals 

A. The Developer is working with the City of Belton on site plan approval and permitting for 

the development of TexStar Travel Center on 3.282 acres at 3463 IH-14.  The Developer 

desires to construct a 10’ water main as illustrated in the exhibit within the City of Belton, 

and within the Dog Ridge Water Supply Corporation service area, in order to adequately 

serve the proposed development.  Developer’s investment in the Infrastructure is 

hereinafter called the “Project.” 

B. The BEDC has entered into an agreement dated January 15, 2019, with Dog Ridge Water 

Supply Corporation, to fund the design and construction of water enhancements along IH-

14, to include the Project area in order to induce promote state and local economic 

development and stimulate business and commercial activity in the City of Belton. 

C. In order to facilitate the timely development of the Project in the City, while maintaining 

the schedule for BEDC funded infrastructure improvements, BEDC has agreed to 

reimburse the Developer for the waterline installation.  

D. BEDC, after due and careful consideration, has concluded that the Project, as provided for 

herein, will benefit BEDC.  



 2 

E. This Agreement has been submitted to BEDC for consideration and review, and BEDC has 

taken all actions required to be taken prior to the execution of this Agreement to make the 

same binding upon BEDC according to the terms hereof. 

F. The Parties wish to set forth their respective rights and obligations with respect to the 

Project. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the promises and agreements herein set forth, 

and other good and valuable consideration, the receipt of which is hereby acknowledged, the 

Parties contract and agree as follows: 

1. BEDC will reimburse Developer up to Seventy-Eight Thousand Five Hundred 

DOLLARS ($78,500), to be tendered to the Developer for direct third-party expenses 

actually incurred by the Developer for the construction of new and improved waterline.  

2. Payment will be issued upon completion of construction in accordance with the plans 

prepared by Belton Engineering, Inc, and inspected and approval by the City of Belton and 

Dog Ridge Water Supply Corporation.   

3. The Developer shall complete the construction within Twelve (12) months following the 

Effective Date of this Agreement.   

4. While not an event of default or a condition to this Agreement, BEDC requests that the 

Developer satisfies its needs for all employee positions from residents of the City of Belton, and 

purchase all materials, supplies and services in the course of making the Investment in the Project 

from merchants and businesses physically located in greater metropolitan area of the City of 

Belton. 



 3 

5. The Developer hereby agrees and acknowledges that if the Developer fails to fully satisfy 

the Performance Conditions as set out herein, BEDC may terminate this agreement without further 

obligation to Developer.   

6. The Developer, in accordance with Chapter 2264 of the Texas Government Code, agrees 

not to knowingly employ or contract with any undocumented workers during the Term of this 

Agreement. 

7. Miscellaneous Provisions.  The following miscellaneous provisions are a part of this 

Agreement: 

a. Amendments.  This Agreement constitutes the entire understanding and agreement 

of the Parties as to the matters set forth in this Agreement.  No alteration of or 

amendment to this Agreement shall be effective unless given in writing and signed 

by all of the Parties hereto.   

b. Applicable Law and Venue.  This Agreement shall be governed by and construed 

in accordance with the laws of the State of Texas, and all obligations of the Parties 

created hereunder are performable in Bell County, Texas.  The Parties agree that 

the venue for any action arising under this Agreement shall lie exclusively in the 

state district courts of Bell County, Texas.  Each party consents and submits to 

personal jurisdiction in said venue and waives any and all right to object to the 

venue and seek transfer of venue for reasons of convenience or otherwise. 

c. Binding Obligation.  This Agreement shall become a binding obligation on the 

signatories upon execution by all signatories hereto. BEDC warrants and represents 

that the individual executing this Agreement on behalf of BEDC has full authority 

to execute this Agreement and bind BEDC to the same.  The Developer warrants 



 4 

and represents that the individual executing this Agreement on its behalf has full 

authority to execute this Agreement and bind it to the same. 

d. Severability.  In the event any provision in this Agreement shall be determined by 

any court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid or unenforceable, the Agreement 

shall, to the extent reasonably possible, remain in force as to the balance of its 

provisions as if such invalid provision were not a part hereof. 

e. Notices.  All notices required to be given under this Agreement shall be given in 

writing and shall be effective when actually delivered or when deposited in the 

United States mail, first class, postage prepaid, addressed to the Party to whom the 

notice is to be given at the addresses shown below.  Any Party may change its 

address for notices under the Agreement by giving formal written notice to the other 

Parties, specifying that the purpose of the notice is to change the Party’s address.  

For notice purposes, each Party agrees to keep the other informed at all times of its 

current address. The addresses of the Parties are:  

Premier Belton Two, LLC   BEDC  
11940 Jollyville Rd, Suite 110-N  2180 North Main St., #C1 
Austin, TX  78759    Belton, Texas 76513  
Attn: Shakeel Badarpura   Attn: Executive Director 

  

f. Counterparts.  This Infrastructure Development Agreement may be executed in one 

or more counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original and all of which 

shall constitute one and the same document. 

g. Personal liability of Public Officials.  To the extent permitted by State law, no 

public official or employee shall be personally responsible for any liability arising 

under or growing out of this Agreement. 



 5 

h. No Joint Venture; No Third-Party Beneficiaries.  It is acknowledged and agreed to 

by the parties hereto that this Agreement is not assignable, and that the terms hereof 

are not intended to and shall not be construed to constitute a partnership or joint 

venture between the parties.  BEDC, its officials, officers and agents, do not assume 

any responsibility or liability to any third parties in connection with the 

development of the Project. 

 

Executed to be effective on the date above first given:    

 

      PREMIER BELTON TWO,  
      a Limited Liability Company 
 

 
By: __________________________________ 
  

      Printed Name: ____________________________ 
 
      Title: __________________________________ 

 
 
 

 
  

BELTON ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 
CORPORATION,  
a Texas nonprofit corporation 

 
 
By: __________________________________ 
 Cynthia Hernandez, Executive Director 
 

 



abeach
PolyLine

abeach
Typewritten Text

abeach
Typewritten Text

abeach
Typewritten Text
The Red Highlight represents the approximate location and extents of water main included within the OPC. 



City Council Agenda Item 
December 8, 2020 

Page 1 of 1   
 

Staff Report – City Council Agenda Item 
 
 
Agenda Item #9 
 
Consider amending Chapter 23, Article VII, Section 23-302 of the Code of Ordinances 
allowing for the exemption of properties owned and operated by the U.S. Army Corps of 
Engineers for the purpose of flood risk management from the drainage fee. 
 
Originating Department 
 
Administration – Sam A. Listi, City Manager 
 
Background 
 
Originally adopted in 2007 (Ordinance 2007-39), the City’s Storm Drainage Ordinance was 
established to protect public health and safety by providing municipal drainage 
improvements, education, and services through a dedicated drainage fund. The drainage 
service area was determined to be the Belton city limits, and a schedule of fees was 
established based on land use – one to four dwelling units at $3 per unit, with other 
properties assessed by amount of impervious cover from $10 - $200 per month. 
 
Properties exempt from the Ordinance, as mandated by the Texas State Legislature, are 
limited to properties owned by the State of Texas and UMHB (see Exempt Property, Section 
23-302). The Corps of Engineers has submitted the attached letter requesting exemption 
from the drainage fee for its properties as being “redundant to our mission”. The Corps, 
through its management of Belton and Stillhouse dams, exercises its primary mission to 
reduce the risk of loss of life due to flooding through its local operations conducted in 
Belton. We consider this to be a reasonable request. 
 
Fiscal Impact: 
 
Currently: $200 monthly fee; $2,400 annually  
 
Recommendation: Recommend amending Chapter 23, Article VII, Section 23-302 of the 
Code of Ordinances exempting properties owned and operated by the U.S. Army Corps of 
Engineers for the purpose of flood risk management from the drainage fee. 
 
Attachments:  
Request from Joshua Brown, Belton Lake Manager, USACE 
Code of Ordinances – Special Drainage Revenue Fund 
Proposed Ordinance Amendment 





(1)

(2)

(3)

(4)

(5)

(6)

(1)

(2)

(1)
(2)
(3)

ARTICLE VII. - SPECIAL REVENUE DRAINAGE FUND

Sec. 23-301. - Purpose.
The special revenue drainage fund and associated drainage functions are established in order to protect the public health

and safety within the city from the loss of life and property caused by surface water overflows, surface water stagnation, and
pollution arising from nonpoint source runoff within the boundaries of the service area of the special revenue drainage fund as
established in the article. Drainage service will be offered on nondiscriminatory, reasonable and equitable terms within the
service area, in conjunction with a categorical hierarchy of drainage priorities for planning and remediation.

(Ord. No. 2012-42, Pt. 1, 10-23-12)

Sec. 23-302. - Definitions.
The following definitions shall apply to terms within this article:

Benefitted property means an improved lot or tract to which a drainage service is made available under this article. Improved
lot or tract means a lot or tract that has a structure or other improvement on it that causes an impervious coverage of the soil
under the structure.

Cost of service as applied to a drainage system service to any benefitted property means allowable uses of such funds,
including:

The prorated cost of the acquisition, whether by eminent domain or otherwise, of land, rights-of-way,
options to purchase land, easements and interests in land relating to structures, equipment and facilities
used in draining the benefitted property;
The prorated cost of the acquisition, construction, repair and maintenance of structures, equipment and
facilities used in draining the benefitted property or the repayment of debt used to finance the same;
The prorated cost of architectural, engineering, legal and related services, mapping, plant and
specifications, studies, surveys, estimates of cost and of revenue, and all other expenses necessary or
incident to planning, providing or determining the feasibility and practicability of structures, equipment
and facilities used in draining the benefitted property;
The prorated cost of all machinery, equipment, furniture and facilities necessary or incident to the
provision and operation of draining the benefitted property;
The direct and indirect administrative costs of operating a municipal drainage system (e.g., personnel,
computer, postage, billing, legal, financial services, etc.); and
The prorated cost of complying with TCEQ's Phase II Water Quality requirements.

Drainage means bridges, catch basins, channels, conduits, creeks, culverts, detention ponds, ditches, draws, flumes, pipes,
pumps, sloughs, treatment works and appurtenances to those items, whether natural or artificial, or using force or gravity, that
are used to draw off surface water from land, carry the water away, collect, store, or treat the water, or divert the water into
natural or artificial watercourses.

Drainage charge means:

The levy imposed to recover the cost of the service of the municipality in furnishing drainage for any
benefitted property; and
An amount made in contribution to funding of future drainage system construction by the city.

Drainage fee means the drainage charge, including any interest and penalties paid by a benefitted or served property for
stormwater drainage services including, but not limited to, the items described as cost of service in section 23-302 of this article,
provided by the drainage function.

Drainage priorities means a categorical hierarchy of drainage priorities for planning and remediation, based on severity of
flooding, to include from highest to lowest priority:

Loss of life;
Loss of residential or non-residential buildings, improvements, utilities or other investments;
Inundation of roadways or stream crossings that cause vehicular accidents or that prevent emergency

[8]

https://library.municode.com/#fn_81
https://library.municode.com/tx/belton/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=PTIICOOR_CH23UT_ARTVIISPREDRFU_S23-302DE


(4)
(5)
(6)

(1)
(2)
(3)

equipment access;
Erosion to public/private improvements or property which cause maintenance problems;
Nuisance flooding;
Aesthetically unpleasing or unwanted drainage flows.

Drainage services are those municipal drainage functions that are regularly provided by the city through city property
dedicated to that service to the users of benefitted property within the service area and that are based on:

An established schedule of charges;
The use of the police power to implement the service; and
Nondiscriminatory, reasonable and equitable terms as determined by the city council.

Drainage system means the drainage owned or controlled in whole or in part by the city and dedicated to the service of
benefitted property, including provisions for additions to the system.

Exempt property means property owned by the State of Texas and the University of Mary Hardin-Baylor, as mandated by the
Texas State Legislature.

Facilities means the property, either real, personal or mixed, that is used in providing drainage and included in the system.

Impervious square footage cover means the total square footage of ground level structural improvements covering the
natural land surface including buildings, parking lots, roads, driveways, swimming pools, and other impermeable surfaces,
typically but not necessarily associated with a water and/or wastewater and/or refuse account. In the case of multiple water
meters, each with separate utility billings, (an apartment complex for example), such impervious square footage cover shall be
counted only once and billed to only one (1) utility account.

Other developed property shall mean any developed lot or parcel used for something other than single family residential
use, including apartments, commercial, religious, industrial, institutional (including non-profit organizations) and governmental
activities, except as exempted.

Parcel means one (1) or more lots or portions of lots which are contiguous and under single ownership.

Residential property shall refer to any property platted or used for single family residential development (i.e., single-family
residential, mobile homes, duplex, triplex, fourplex, etc., but not including larger apartment buildings) upon which a structure has
been placed.

Service area means the geographic area which shall be served by the city's drainage services, as established by the ordinance
codified in this article in section 23-304.

Single-family residential dwelling unit shall refer to the number of dwelling units contained within any property platted or
used for single family residential purposes. For purposes of this article, a single family detached structure shall equal one (1)
dwelling unit, a duplex shall equal two (2) dwelling units, a triplex shall equal three (3) dwelling units, and a fourplex shall equal
four (4) dwelling units. Larger apartment buildings shall not be considered single family dwelling units.

User means the person or entity who owns or occupies a benefitted property.

(Ord. No. 2012-42, Pt. 1, 10-23-12)

Sec. 23-303. - Dedications of assets to special revenue drainage fund.
The city dedicates all city-owned property, facilities, materials and supplies constituting the city's drainage system to the

special revenue drainage fund created under section 23-305 hereinafter on the effective date of the ordinance codified in this
article. All future acquisitions of real or personal property related to drainage shall be maintained as a part of the special revenue
drainage fund.

(Ord. No. 2012-42, Pt. 1, 10-23-12)

Sec. 23-304. - Drainage service area.
The service area for the special revenue drainage fund shall include the city limits as they shall be amended from time to

time by action of the city council.

(Ord. No. 2012-42, Pt. 1, 10-23-12)

https://library.municode.com/tx/belton/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=PTIICOOR_CH23UT_ARTVIISPREDRFU_S23-304DRSEAR
https://library.municode.com/tx/belton/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=PTIICOOR_CH23UT_ARTVIISPREDRFU_S23-305SPREDRFU


(1)
(2)

(a)

Sec. 23-305. - Special revenue drainage fund.
A separate special revenue drainage fund, within the city's fund structure, shall be created as of the effective date of the

ordinance codified in this article, known as the special revenue drainage fund, for the purpose of identifying and controlling all
revenues and expenses attributable to municipal drainage services and water quality enhancement related thereto. All drainage
fees collected by the city after the effective date of the ordinance codified in this article and such other monies as may be
available by or to the city for the purpose of drainage shall be deposited in the special revenue drainage fund. Such drainage
revenues shall be used for the purpose of the creation, operation, planning, engineering, inspection, construction, repair,
maintenance, improvement, reconstruction, administration and other reasonable and customary charges associated with the
operation of drainage services and water quality enhancement for the city. It shall not be necessary that the expenses from the
special revenue drainage fund for any authorized purpose specifically relate to any particular benefitted property from which the
revenues for such purposes were collected. The income derived from the operation of municipal drainage services must be
segregated in one (1) or more accounts and completely identifiable from other city accounts. Drainage fees will be used for the
sole purposes of promoting drainage services and enhancing water quality related thereto in conjunction with a categorical
hierarchy of drainage priorities, and will not be transferred to other municipal fund accounts for non-drainage purposes, except
where specifically permitted by V.T.C.A., Local Government Code, ch. 402, subch. C.

(Ord. No. 2012-42, Pt. 1, 10-23-12)

Sec. 23-306. - Administration of municipal drainage services.
The city manager shall be responsible for the administration of this article including, but not limited to, enacting any

procedures necessary for the administration of the drainage charges and the consideration of variances, developing maintenance
programs, and establishing drainage criteria and standards for operation of the drainage system.

(Ord. No. 2012-42, Pt. 1, 10-23-12)

Sec. 23-307. - No assumed liability for floods and nonpoint source
pollution.

Floods from drainage and stormwater runoff may occasionally occur which exceed the capacity of the drainage system
maintained and financed with the drainage charges. In addition, surface water stagnation and pollution arising from nonpoint
source runoff may occasionally occur which exceed the capacity of the drainage system maintained and financed with drainage
charges. This article does not imply that properties subject to charges shall always be free from flooding or flood damage, surface
water stagnation or nonpoint source pollution or that all flood control and water treatment projects to control the quantity and
quality of runoff can be constructed to provide for one hundred (100) percent effectiveness. Nothing whatsoever in this article
should be construed as or be deemed to create additional duties on the part of the city to hold the city liable for any damages
incurred in a flood or from adverse water quality due to drainage runoff. Nothing in this article shall be deemed to waive the city's
immunity under state law or reduce the need or necessity for property owners to procure flood insurance within or without the
city.

(Ord. No. 2012-42, Pt. 1, 10-23-12)

Sec. 23-308. - Establishment of a drainage fee.
A drainage fee is imposed upon each developed lot and parcel with structural improvements located within the city for

drainage services and facilities and water quality enhancement related thereto provided by the city, except as exempted. For
purposes of imposing the drainage fee, all lots and parcels within the city are classified into the following two (2) customer
categories:

Residential property (one (1) to four (4) dwelling units on one (1) parcel); and
Other property (all other developed property including multifamily developments with more than four (4)
dwelling units on one (1) parcel).

(Ord. No. 2012-42, Pt. 1, 10-23-12; Ord. No. 2016-32, Pt. 1, 7-26-16)

Sec. 23-309. - Calculation of drainage fees.
The following schedule shall be used to determine the applicable drainage fee:

Residential Property

 EXPAND



(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

(a)

 

Other Property

 

Drainage fees will apply to improved lots and parcels within the City regardless of whether or not the City of
Belton Utility Department bills the improved lots or parcels for water and/or sewage and/or garbage service.
The city manager shall be responsible for determining impervious cover square footage area of other properties,
as defined herein, based on data obtained from the tax appraisal district of Bell County. If such information is
unavailable from the appraisal district files, the property owner, tenant or responsible party may submit a
certified survey or an impervious surface survey to assist the city manager in determining applicable area. The
city manager may require additional information as necessary to make the determination. The amount of any
fee may be revised by the city manager based on additions to the impervious cover area, as approved through
the City of Belton's building permit process or as shown from the records of the appraisal district.
The city council may review the foregoing schedule of fees at any time and may, by ordinance, increase or
decrease the fees within the schedule upon a determination, in compliance with V.T.C.A., Local Government
Code § 402.045, that such increase or decrease is warranted.
The city council finds and determines that the drainage fee has been established in accordance with the
provisions of the V.T.C.A., Local Government Code ch. 402, Subchapter C, "Municipal Drainage Utility Systems."

(Ord. No. 2012-42, Pt. 1, 10-23-12; Ord. No. 2016-32, Pt. 1, 7-26-16)

Sec. 23-310. - Billing and payment—Penalties.
Bills or statements for the drainage fee shall be rendered by the city for all properties subject to the fee. Bills
shall be payable within ten (10) days of the date when rendered and shall be considered as having been mailed
to the customer and/or owner, whether actually received or not, when deposited in the United States mail,

# of

Units

Monthly Fee 

1 $3.00 per monthly billing cycle per single-family dwelling unit

2 $3.00 per unit, $6.00 total per monthly billing cycle

3 $3.00 per unit, $9.00 total per monthly billing cycle

4 $3.00 per unit, $12.00 total per monthly billing cycle

 EXPAND

Square Feet Range of Impervious Cover Monthly Fee

250,000 square feet and over $200.00

100,000—249,999 square feet  100.00

50,000—99,999 square feet   50.00

10,000—49,999 square feet   20.00

0—9,999 square feet   10.00



(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

(a)

(1)

(2)

(3)

(4)

(b)

postage prepaid, addressed to the utility customer. Bills shall be rendered monthly. Bills shall be for services for
the preceding month.
Bills are due when rendered, and subject to late charges, disconnection of service, and reconnection fees
authorized under the provisions relating to water/wastewater service under chapter 23, Utilities, of the City Code
of Ordinances. Current penalties and service charges for reconnection are reflected in the city's fee and rate
schedule.
Drainage fees shall be billed with the city's utility billings and shall be identified separately on the bill as a
drainage/water quality fee. Delinquent fee bills shall be mailed to the customer at the address at which the
owner receives other city utility services, or if no other city utility services are rendered, to any known address of
the owner.
Any charge due hereunder which is not paid when due will subject the user to discontinuance of all utility
services provided by the City of Belton, including water, wastewater, and sanitation service. Any drainage charge
due hereunder which shall not be paid when due may be recovered in an action at law by the city. The
employees of the city's drainage services shall have access, at all reasonable times, to any benefitted properties
served by the drainage services for inspection, repair or enforcement of sections 23-310 through 23-311.
Notice of the imposition of drainage fees shall be mailed to all customers of the city's water, wastewater, and
sanitation services. Such notice shall state that drainage fees will be billed to the customer of each such service
and that failure of a customer and/or owner to pay such fees may result in the discontinuance of all city water,
wastewater and sanitation services.

(Ord. No. 2012-42, Pt. 1, 10-23-12)

Sec. 23-311. - Adjustment of fees.
A request for adjustment of a drainage fee shall be submitted to the city manager, who shall administer the
procedures and standards and review criteria for the adjustment of fees as established herein. All requests shall
be evaluated based upon the amount of impervious cover of square footage. The following procedures shall
apply to all requests for adjustment of the drainage fee:

Any owner or customer who has paid a drainage fee and who believes the calculation or determination of
the drainage fee to be incorrect may, subject to the restrictions set forth in this article, submit an
adjustment request to the city manager. Requests for adjustment of drainage fees paid by an owner or
customer making the request shall be in writing and set forth in detail the grounds upon which relief is
sought.
Adjustment requests for drainage fees will be reviewed by the city manager within sixty (60) days from the
date of receipt of an adjustment request. Adjustments resulting from such a request shall be prospective,
but may be made retroactive for no greater time period than three (3) months prior to the receipt of the
request, at the discretion of the city manager.
The owner or customer requesting an adjustment may be required, at the requesting party's own cost, to
provide supplemental information to the city manager, including, but not limited to, survey data approved
by a Texas registered professional land surveyor, or detailed development plan approved by the City of
Belton. Failure to provide requested information within a reasonable period of time as set by the city
manager may result in the denial of the adjustment request.
Adjustments to the drainage fee will be made upon the granting of the adjustment request, in writing, by
the city manager. Denials of adjustment request shall be made in writing by the city manager and set forth
in detail the reasons for the decision.

The city manager shall apply the standards and review criteria contained in this section. All findings and
determinations made by the city manager arising out of this section will be final.

(Ord. No. 2012-42, Pt. 1, 10-23-12)

Secs. 23-312—23-320. - Reserved.

https://library.municode.com/tx/belton/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=PTIICOOR_CH23UT
https://library.municode.com/tx/belton/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=PTIICOOR_CH23UT_ARTVIISPREDRFU_S23-310BIPAEN
https://library.municode.com/tx/belton/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=PTIICOOR_CH23UT_ARTVIISPREDRFU_S23-311ADFE


ORDINANCE NO. 2020-48 
 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 23, ARTICLE VII, SPECIAL REVENUE 
DRAINAGE FUND, SECTION 23-302 OF THE CODE OF ORDINANCES AMENDING 
THE DEFINITION OF EXEMPT PROPERTIES; PROVIDING A SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; 
PROVIDING A REPEALER CLAUSE; PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE; AND 
PROVIDING AN OPEN MEETINGS CLAUSE. 
                  
 
 WHEREAS, Chapter 402, Subchapter C, “Municipal Drainage Utility Systems,” of 
the Texas Local Government Code authorizes municipalities to create municipal 
drainage utilities and to levy a municipal drainage fee; 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council has determined that the most effective way to meet the 
financial needs of these drainage system requirements is through the continuation of a 
municipal drainage fee on certain property as described herein and located within the 
City limits; 
 
 WHEREAS, Ordinance No. 2012-42 reenacted the Special Revenue Drainage Fund 
which has been codified as Chapter 23, Article VII, Special Revenue Drainage Fund in 
the Code of Ordinances; and Ordinance No. 2016-32 clarified Section 23-308 and 
Section 23-309. 
 
 WHEREAS, the City now desires to amend Section 23-302 as it relates to the 
definition of Exempt Property.  
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
BELTON, TEXAS, THAT: 
 
 PART 1:  SPECIAL REVENUE DRAINAGE FUND 
 
Section 23-302  Definitions. 
 
 Exempt property means property owned by the State of Texas and the University 
of Mary Hardin-Baylor, as mandated by the Texas State Legislature. Exempt property 
also includes property owned and operated by the U. S. Army Corps of Engineers for 
the purpose of flood risk management.  
   
 PART 2:  If any provision of this ordinance or the application of any provision to any 
person or circumstance is held invalid, the invalidity shall not affect other provisions or 
applications of the ordinance which can be given effect without the invalid provision or 
application, and to this end the provisions of this ordinance are declared to be severable. 
 
 PART 3:  All ordinances or part of ordinances in conflict with the provisions of this 
ordinance are to the extent of such conflict hereby repealed. 
 



 2 

 PART 4:  It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this 
ordinance is passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, 
place, and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act. 
  

PASSED AND APPROVED at a regular meeting of the Belton City Council on the 8th 
day of December, 2020. 
 

THE CITY OF BELTON, TEXAS 
 
 

      
Wayne Carpenter, Mayor 

 
ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
             
Amy M. Casey, City Clerk    John Messer, City Attorney 
 
 
  


	Agenda - 120820
	City Manager's Memo
	#3A - Minutes - 112420 Workshop
	#3B - Minutes - 112420
	#4 - Staff Report - Board Appointments
	#5 - Staff Report - Drawing for Place Numbers
	#6 - Staff Report - License Agreement - W Canyon Trails Sign
	#6 - Attachments

	#7 - Staff Report - Admin Services with BEDC
	#7 - Attachments

	#8 - Staff Report - BEDC Infrastructure Dev Agreement Premier Belton Two
	#8 - Attachments

	#9 - Staff Report - USACE Drainage Fee Exemption
	#9 - Attachments




